



September 13

# SPLC Bylaws

# 2008

---

This is the proposed Bylaws as needed for not for profit incorporation.

[updated Jan 2012]

**ARTICLE I Office;  
Fiscal Year and Members**

**Section 1.01. Registered Office.** The registered office of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be 6809 Wilburn Rd Sun Prairie WI 53590

**Section 1.02. Fiscal Year.** The fiscal year of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall begin on the first day of July in each year.

**Section 1.03. Members.** For all purposes of these bylaws, the Members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall consist of those Sun Prairie Area School District residents or surrounding communities who are active supporters of Sun Prairie High School and/or Sun Prairie Youth Lacrosse (Lax) Programs and who have paid the annual membership fee in a time frame set by the Executive Board. The Members shall exercise those rights as are set forth herein, including rights to attend Executive Board meetings and to elect vacating directors, among others. Members' qualifications for voting and attendance rights shall be subject to Executive Board confirmation. Exceptions to the residency requirement, as outlined above, may be granted by unanimous approval of the SPLC Executive Board.

**ARTICLE II  
Powers, Qualifications and Selection**

**Executive Board Section 2.01. Powers.** The Executive Board shall have full power to conduct, manage, and direct the business and affairs of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC); and all powers of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), are hereby granted to and vested in the Executive Board.

**Section 2.02. Director Qualifications and Selection.** Nominees for Executive Board directors shall be limited to those persons nominated by a Nominating Committee, Advisory Board, if any, or in conjunction with a General Election among Members. When selecting nominees, the Nominating Committee shall seek to identify and nominate SPLC Members who will help achieve or maintain balance on the Executive Board with respect to various lacrosse constituencies (including, but not limited to, youth groups, high schools, colleges, clubs and officials/referees).

**Section 2.03. Number and Term of Office.** The Executive Board shall consist of such number of directors not less than four nor more than 8, as such number may be determined from time to time by resolution of the Executive Board. Each director shall hold office for two years and until a successor shall have been elected and qualified, except in the event of death, resignation or removal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, one half of the originating directors elected by the Members at the initial organizational meeting shall have terms for one year, and such directors shall remain until a successor shall have been elected and qualified.

**Section 2.04. Vacancies.** (a) The Executive Board may declare vacant the office of any director of the Executive Board if such director is declared of unsound mind by an order of court, or convicted of felony, or for any other proper cause, or if within 60 days after notice of selection, the director does not accept such office either in writing or alternatively, by attending a meeting of the Executive Board. (b) Any vacancy or vacancies

in the Executive Board because of death, resignation, removal in any manner, disqualification, an increase in the number of officers, or any other cause, may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining directors of the Executive Board though less than a quorum, at any regular or special meeting; and each person so elected shall be a director to serve for the balance of the unexpired term.

***Section 2.05. Place of Meeting.*** Meetings of the Executive Board may be held at such place as the Executive Board may from time to time appoint, or as may be designated in the notice of the meeting.

***Section 2.06. Regular Meetings.*** A minimum of four regular meetings of the Executive Board shall be held each year and place as shall be designated from time to time by resolution of the Executive Board. At such meetings, the directors shall transact such business as may properly be brought before the meeting. Notice of regular meetings need not be given unless otherwise required by law or these bylaws.

***Section 2.07. Special Meetings.*** Special meetings of the Executive Board shall be held whenever called by the President or by two or more of the directors. Notice of each such meeting shall be given to each director by telephone or in writing at least 24 hours (in the case of notice by telephone) or 48 hours (in the case of notice by fax or e—mail) or five days (in the case of notice by mail) before the time at which the meeting is to be held. Every such notice shall state the time and place of the meeting.

***Section 2.08. Quorum, Manner of Acting, and Adjournment.*** A majority of the Executive Board in office shall be present at each meeting in order to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every director shall be entitled to one vote. In cases where any such votes end in a deadlock, the Past President will be called upon to cast the deciding vote. Except as otherwise specified in the articles or these bylaws or provided by statute, the acts of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Executive Board. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the directors present and voting may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. The directors shall act only as a board and the individual directors shall have no power as such, except that any action taken at a meeting of the directors may be taken without a meeting, if a consent or consents in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the directors and shall be filed with the Secretary of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC).

- (a) The Executive Board may also establish such other committees appropriate from time to time.
- (b) The Executive Board shall have and exercise all of the powers and authority to manage the business and affairs of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC)
- (c) The Executive Board shall have a Nominating Committee, which shall be formed in advance of each annual election of directors by the past President. Members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club will fill other positions. The Nominating Committee may choose each year to designate any number of Executive Board nominees not to exceed three for each available Executive Board position. The Nominating Committee shall also receive nominees from Advisory Committees and from meetings where the members shall by majority vote select nominees.
- (d) The establishment of any committee of the Executive Board and the delegation thereto of power and authority shall not alone relieve any director of the fiduciary duty of such director to The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC).

- (e) A majority of the directors in office designated to a committee shall be present at each meeting to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the acts of a majority of the directors in office designated to a committee shall be the acts of the committee. Deadlocked voting will be decided by Past President.

**Section 2.10. Interested Directors; Quorum.** No contract or transaction between The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) and one or more of its directors or officers, or between The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of its directors or officers are officers of such contracting party, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely for such reason, or solely because the director or officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the Executive Board which authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because his, her or their votes are counted for such purpose, if:

- (a) The material facts as to such relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed by the conflicted party who may not vote or are known to the Executive Board and in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors are less than a quorum.

### **ARTICLE III**

#### **Notice - Waivers - Meetings – Voting**

**Section 3.01. Notice, What constitutes a notice.** Whenever written notice is required to be given to any person under the provisions of the articles, these bylaws, it may be given to the person, either personally or by sending a copy thereof by first class or express mail, postage prepaid, or courier services, charges prepaid, or by facsimile or electronic transmission to his or her address (or to his or her facsimile number) supplied by the person to The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) for the purpose of notice. If the notice is sent by mail or courier service, it shall be deemed to have been given to the person entitled thereto when deposited in the United States mail or with a courier service for delivery to that person. A notice of meeting shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and any other information required by law or these bylaws.

**Section 3.02. Waivers of Notice.**(a) Whenever any written notice is required to be given under the provisions of the articles, these bylaws, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to the notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of the notice. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of a meeting need be specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting. (b) Attendance of a person at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting, except where a person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened.

**Section 3.03. Modification of Proposal Contained in Notice.** Whenever the language of a proposed resolution is included in a written notice of a meeting required to be given under the articles or these bylaws, the meeting considering the resolution may without further notice adopt it with such clarifying or other amendments as do not enlarge its original purpose.

**Section 3.04. Exception to Requirement of Notice.** Wherever any notice or communication is required to be given to any person under the provisions of the articles or these bylaws, or by the terms of any agreement or other instrument or as a condition precedent to taking any corporate action, and communication with that person is then unlawful, the giving of the notice or communication to such person shall not be required and there shall be no duty to apply for a license or other permission to do so.

**Section 3.05. Conference Telephone Meetings.** One or more persons may participate in a meeting of the board or a committee of the board by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

**Section 3.06. Member Voting.** One ballot per member household will be issued by first class or electronic mail. Voting outcome will be determined by simple majority of votes cast.

#### **ARTICLE IV: Officers**

**Section 4.01. Number, Qualifications and Designation.** The officers of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be a President, a Vice President, a secretary, a treasurer, and the Executive Board may designate such other officers as deemed necessary. Only members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club shall be eligible to serve as officers. Directors may also be Officers.

- (a) In lieu of the standards of conduct otherwise provided by law, officers of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be subject to the same standards of conduct, including standards of care and loyalty and rights of justifiable reliance, as shall at the time are applicable to directors of other governing State and Regional Lacrosse Organizations.
- (b) An officer of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall not be personally liable, as such, to The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) for monetary damages for any action taken, or any failure to take any action, unless the officer has breached or failed to perform the duties of his or her office under the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or the applicable provisions of law and the breach or failure to perform constitutes self-dealing, willful misconduct or recklessness. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to the responsibility or liability of an officer pursuant to any criminal statute or for the payment of taxes pursuant to local, state or federal law.

**Section 4.02. Election and Term of Office.** The officers of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be elected for terms as follows;

In the first board meeting following July 1<sup>st</sup> the SPLC board will determine office holders for any open officer positions. This is to be done through a motion and simple majority vote.

All officer positions have a 2 year term unless board member has only 1 year left on their board term and do not seek reelection to board or are not reelected.

Upon election of new president, the former current president automatically takes the position of past president with former

past president vacating that position. Past president is still subject to normal Removal terms (4.0.3.) in which case the former past president would refill that position.

**Section 4.03. Removal.** Any officer, committee member, employee, member or other agent of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) may be removed, either for or without cause, by the majority vote of the Executive Board or other authority which elected, retained or appointed such officer, committee or other agent whenever in the judgment of such authority, the best interests of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights of any person so removed.

**Section 4.04. Vacancies.** A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, shall be filled by the Executive Board, and if the office is one for which these bylaws prescribe a term, shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term.

**Section 4.05. General Powers.** All officers of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), as between themselves and The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), shall have such authority and perform such duties in the management of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) as may be determined by resolutions or orders of the Executive Board, as may be provided in these bylaws.

**Section 4.06. The President.** The President shall be the chief executive officer of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), and shall have general supervision over the activities and operations of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), subject, however, to the control of the Executive Board. The President shall sign, execute, and acknowledge, in the name of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruments, authorized by the Executive Board, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Executive Board, or by these bylaws, to some other officer or agent of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC); and, in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of President, and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Executive Board or the chairman. The President is the liaison to all state, regional and local lacrosse associations or organizations. The President will preside at Executive Board meetings.

**Section 4.07. The Vice President.** The Vice President shall perform the duties of the President in the absence of the President and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him or her by the Executive Board, the President or the chairman.

**Section 4.08. The Secretary.** The Secretary shall record all the votes of the directors and the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Board of committees of the Executive Board in a book or books to be kept for that purpose; shall see that notices are given and records and reports properly kept and filed by The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) as required by law and, in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of secretary, and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Executive Board, the President or the chairman. The secretary will directly supervise the Communications Coordinator, set dates, times, and locations for board meetings, distribute board meeting dates and notes to the Executive Board directors, members, team rep(s), committee chairpersons, coaches, members, players; and compile and maintain The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) directory not excluding The Executive Board, parents, representatives, members, players, and coaches.

**Section 4.09. The Treasurer.** The Treasurer shall have or provide for the custody of the funds or other property of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC); shall collect and receive or provide for the collection and receipt of moneys earned by or in any manner due to or received by The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC); shall deposit all funds in his or her custody as treasurer in such banks or other places of deposit as the Executive Board may from time to time designate; shall, whenever so required by the board of directors, render an account showing all transactions as treasurer, and the financial condition of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC); and, in general, shall discharge such other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the Executive Board, the President or the chairman. The treasurer will collect funds from all Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club sponsored events, pay officials as needed, and work with all SPLC High School and Youth Lacrosse team coordinators to set and collect all fees and funds. Dispersal of funds from SPLC checking accounts will require one signature of an Executive Board member.

**Section 4.10. The Past President.** The Past President has the tie breaking voting authority in any case where any Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club voting is deadlocked. The Past President will assist all SPLC Executive Board needs and will assist the current President in their duties.

## **ARTICLE V Committee Chairpersons**

**Section 5.01. Number, Qualifications and Designation.** The committees recommended by The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be a Coordinating committee composed of a Boys High School coordinator; Boys Youth coordinator, Girls High School coordinator, Girl's Youth coordinator, tournament coordinator, equipment coordinator, communications coordinator, facilities coordinator, concessions coordinator, finance coordinator, promotions coordinator, and a Nominating committee and Executive committee.

- (a) In lieu of the standards of conduct otherwise provided by law, Committee Chairpersons of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be subject to the same standards of conduct, including standards of care and honesty and rights of justifiable reliance, as shall at the time be applicable to other MALA and State Lacrosse organizations.
- (b) A committee chairperson or committee member of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall not be personally liable, as such, to The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) for monetary damages for any action taken, or any failure to take any action, unless the committee chair has breached or failed to perform the duties of his or her committee under the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or the applicable provisions of law and the breach or failure to perform constitutes self-dealing, willful misconduct or recklessness. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to the responsibility or liability of a chair pursuant to any criminal statute or for the payment of taxes pursuant to local, state or federal law.

**Section 5.02. Election and Term of Office.** The committee chairpersons or selected committee members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be elected for one-year terms by the Executive Board or other authority which elected, retained or appointed such committee. Unless specifically designated elsewhere in these bylaws, the Executive Board shall be the sole electing body.

**Section 5.03. Removal.** Any committee member, employee or other agent of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) may be removed, either for or without cause, by the Executive Board or other authority which elected, retained or appointed such officer, committee or other agent whenever in the judgment of such authority the best interests of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights of any person so removed.

**Section 5.04. Vacancies.** A vacancy in any chairperson because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, shall be filled by the Executive Board, and if the office is one for which these bylaws prescribe a term, shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term.

**Section 5.05. General Powers.** All committee chairpersons or selected committee members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), as between themselves and The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), shall have such authority and perform such duties in the management of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) as may be determined by resolutions or orders of the Executive Board.

**Section 5.06. Boys High School Coordinator** - The Boys High School (HS) Coordinator will work with the Executive Board, coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to scheduling games or scrimmages, coordinating officials as needed, establishing and helping facilitate rules and regs, as well as recruiting players and coaches while helping maintain a Boys HS LaX Program. The Boys HS Coordinator will work directly with the Boys High School LaX Head Coach, the Boys HS Coaching Staff and Team Rep(s).

**Section 5.07. Boys Youth Coordinator** - The Boy's Youth Coordinator will work with the Executive Board, coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to scheduling games or scrimmages, coordinating officials as needed, establishing and helping facilitate rules and regs as well as recruiting and helping maintain a Boys Youth (grades 3 - 8) LaX Program. The Boys Youth Coordinator will work directly with the Boys High School LaX Head Coach, the Boys HS Coaching Staff and Boys Youth Team Rep(s).

**Section 5.08. Girls HS Coordinator** - The Girls HS coordinator will work with the Executive Board, coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to scheduling games or scrimmages, coordinating officials as needed, establishing and helping facilitate rules and regs, as well as recruiting players and coaches (as needed) while helping maintain a Girls HS LaX Program. The Girls HS coordinator will work directly with the Girls' HS LaX Head Coach, the Girl's HS Coaching Staff and Team Rep(s).

**Section 5.09 Girls Youth Coordinator** - The Girls Youth coordinator will work with the Executive Board, coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to scheduling games or scrimmages, coordinating officials as needed, establishing and helping facilitate rules and regs, as well as recruiting and helping maintain a Girls Youth (grades 3 - 8) LaX Program. The Girls Youth coordinator will work directly with the Girls High School LaX Head Coach and the Girls HS Coaching Staff and the Girls Youth Team Rep(s).

**Section 5.10 Tournaments Coordinator** - The Tournaments Coordinator will work with coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to tournament scheduling, travel and lodging coordination, tournament budgets, equipment and facility coordination and all tournament communications. The SPLC Tournaments Coordinator will work directly with the Head Coaches, Team Rep(s), President, Treasurer, the SPLC Communications Coordinator, and all Tournaments Hosts.



***Section 5.11 Communications Coordinator*** - The Communications Coordinator will work with the coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to assisting with all necessary media coverage and publicity of SPLC events, all content on the SPLC web site, communications and information from all MALA (Madison Area Lacrosse Association), WLF (Wisconsin Lacrosse Federation) or US Lacrosse sanctioned events as well as being responsible for all stats and record keeping of SPLC games and events. The SPLC Communications Coordinator will work directly with the Head Coaches, Coaching Staffs, Team Rep(s), Secretary, all necessary SPLC Coordinators, and other MALA and WLF officials.

***Section 5.12 Facilities Coordinator*** - The Facilities Coordinator will work with the coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to securing both outdoor fields and other indoor facilities, lining fields, mowing, goals, 'ball boys', bleachers, sideline assistance as well as coordinating all facilities access and maintenance with local officials as needed. The SPLC Facilities Coordinator will work directly with the Head Coaches, Team Rep(s), Vice President, and Treasurer, the SPLC Equipment Coordinator and all other necessary SPLC committee members.

***Section 5.13 Finance Coordinator*** - The Finance Coordinator will work with the coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to assisting with all fundraising, sponsorships, grants, gift-in-kinds, establishing fees or dues, collecting fees or dues, assisting with SPLC annual budgets and other SPLC monetary coordination. The Finance Coordinator will work directly with the Head Coaches, Team Rep(s), President, Treasurer, the Promotions Coordinator and all other necessary SPLC committee members.

***Section 5.14 Promotions Coordinator*** - The Promotions Coordinator will work with the coaches, team rep(s), officials and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to assisting with all promotional activities such as fundraising, parades, banquets, SPLC clinics, tryouts, and any other related coordination. The Promotions Coordinator will work directly with the Head Coaches, Team Rep(s), President, Treasurer, the Finance Coordinator and all other necessary SPLC committee members.

***Section 5.15 Concessions Coordinator*** - The Concessions Coordinator will work with the coaches, team rep(s), officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Responsibilities include and are not limited to assisting with all concession activities for home games, clinics, tournaments, team banquets or dinners, and related concession functions. The Concessions Coordinator will work directly with the Head Coaches, Team Rep(s), Treasurer, the Facilities Coordinator, the Finance Coordinator and all other necessary SPLC committee members.

***Section 5.16 Nominating Committee*** - The Nominating Committee will be composed of Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club members, Past President and Executive Board to establish a list of nominees (based on term) to fill all vacating Executive Board Director positions. The nominees will be voted on and elected by all attending SPLC members at the SPLC annual meeting.

***Section 5.17 Executive Committee*** - The Executive Committee, if formed by the Executive Board, will serve The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) Executive Board as deemed necessary by an affirmative consensus of all SPLC Members. The Advisory or Executive Committee shall not have any power or authority as to the following:

- (a) The filling of vacancies in the Executive Board.
- (b) The adoption, amendment or repeal of the bylaws.
- (c) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Executive Board.

## **ARTICLE VI Indemnification of Officers and Other Authorized Representatives**

***Section 6.01. Indemnification of Officers.*** To the extent that an officer or agent of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which such person was a party as the result of serving as an officer or agent of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) (or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein), such person shall be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith. In addition, The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) may provide indemnification in other circumstances to the extent permitted by Nonprofit Law. Any obligation to indemnify shall be satisfied from any assets of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), if any.

## **ARTICLE VII Miscellaneous**

**Section 7.01. Club Affiliation.** The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall at all times conduct its activities and programs in a manner consistent with the purposes of US Lacrosse, the Wisconsin Lacrosse Federation, and Madison Area Lacrosse Association.

**Section 7.02. Checks.** All checks and notes in the name of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) may be signed by either of two members of the Executive Board of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC), the President, or Treasurer. No expenditure of \$500 or more and no commitment to expend such amount shall be made without the prior approval of the Executive Board.

**Section 7.03. Contracts.** Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, only The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) President and a SPLC officer, agent or agents directly appointed by the Executive Board, may be allowed to enter into any contract or to execute or deliver any instrument on behalf of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

**Section 7.04. Deposits.** All funds of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Executive Board may approve or designate.

**Section 7.05. Amendment of Bylaws.** These bylaws may be amended or repealed, and new bylaws may be adopted, by vote of a majority of the Members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) at any regular or special meeting of the Executive Board. Such proposed amendment, repeal or new bylaws, or a summary thereof, shall be set forth in any notice of such meeting, whether regular or special.

**Section 7.06. Boundaries.** Players will be members of a club according to the following rules:

- (a) **High School** - High School players must participate with the club/ team affiliated with the high school they attend or the public school district in which they reside at least 50% of the calendar year, if such club exists.
- (b) **Youth** - Youth players must participate with the club/ team affiliated with the traditional high school of that area, if such club exists.

**Section 7.07. Team Member Eligibility.** The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC) will follow the Sun Prairie School District Athletic Departments age eligibility rules. Independent Lacrosse tournament eligibility rules may supersede this section.

**ARTICLE VIII**  
**Coaches, Team Rep(s) and Members**

**Section 8.01 Coaches** - All Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club Coaches shall work with all other SPLC coaches, team rep(s), Executive Committee officials, and members of The Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club (SPLC). All SPLC Coaches will be annually reviewed by the Executive Board. All coaching position selections will be approved by the Executive Board. An Advisory Committee may be appointed to assist with the annual coaching selection process. All SPLC coaches are subject to the terms and conditions contained herein.

**Section 8.02 Team Rep(s)** - Each Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club Team shall elect or appoint one SPLC member as the official Team Representative. Responsibilities include and are not limited to coordination and communication of all respective SPLC Team activities and functions. The team rep(s) will represent Sun Prairie Lacrosse Club at all MALA meetings. Team rep(s) will assist with scheduling, team budgets, and hold all necessary player records required by most lacrosse participation standards. All team rep(s) must be approved annually by the Executive Board. The team rep(s) will work directly with the Head Coach's and Coaching Staff, other Team Rep(s), President, Secretary, all Committee Chairpersons, and all other necessary SPLC committee members.

**Section 8.03 Members** - All Members agree to the terms and conditions contained herein the SPLC bylaws; any SPLC Executive Board approved Sportsmanship Agreements, as well as any SPLC Rules and Regulations. All members agree to support SPLC by assisting all Coaches, Players, Team Rep(s), Executive Board and members.